
















 1 

Plan Commission Conditional Use Permit Review 

3444 Lake Mendota Drive Project 
 

The Plan Commission hereby forwards its written advisory recommendation to the Village Board 

within after receipt of the application from the Zoning Administrator. The Plan Commission 

recommends approval subject to specified conditions, contained herein.  

 

A conditional use shall be approved under this paragraph only if the applicant demonstrates by 

clear and convincing evidence the following: 

 

1. Views of Lake Mendota from points off the lot on which the development or excavation 

proposed will not be adversely affected.  

 

Views of Lake Mendota from points off the lot on which the development or excavation 

proposed will not be adversely affect, particularly given that three tall pine are being 

removed in the back yard. 

  

2. Erosion will not be increased. 

 

Based on the Village Engineer’s review of the applicant’s erosion control plan, there will 

be no increase. Permeable pavers and materials are being utilized. 

 

3. The flow of surface water will not be changed so as to adversely affect other lots, the lake and 

other aspects of the natural environment.  

 

No change in surface water flow as to adversely affect other lots, the lake or natural 

environment is expected.  

 

4. Infiltration of surface water into the ground will not be adversely affected. 

 

Infiltration of water into the ground will not be adversely affected. 

 

5. Access to properties and structures by firefighters and other emergency personnel will not be 

adversely affected. 

 

Access will not be adversely affected. 

 

 

The Plan Commission shall review the application according to the standards below. No 

application shall be recommended for approval by the Plan Commission unless it finds that the 

following conditions are met:  

 

1. That the establishment, maintenance or operation of the conditional use will not be detrimental 

to or endanger the public health, safety, morals, comfort or general welfare. 

 

Finding: The Commission finds the above conditions are met and will not be detrimental to 

or endanger the public health, safety, morals, comfort or general welfare.  

 



 2 

2. That the uses, values and enjoyment of other property in the neighborhood for purposes already 

permitted shall be in no foreseeable manner substantially impaired or diminished by the 

establishment, maintenance or operation of the conditional use and the proposed use is 

compatible with the use of adjacent land. 

 

Finding: The Commission finds that the uses, values and enjoyment of other property in the 

neighborhood for purposes already permitted are in no foreseeable manner substantially 

impaired or diminished by the establishment, maintenance or operation of the conditional 

use and the proposed use is compatible with the use of adjacent land. 

 

3. That the establishment of the conditional use will not impede the normal and orderly 

development and improvement of the surrounding property for uses permitted in the district, 

and will not be contrary to an adopted comprehensive plan of the Village. 

 

Finding: The Commission finds that the establishment of the conditional use will not impede 

the normal and orderly development and improvement of the surrounding property for uses 

permitted in the district, and will not be contrary to an adopted comprehensive plan of the 

Village. 

 

4. That adequate utilities, access roads, drainage and other necessary site improvements have 

been, are being or will be provided. 

  

Finding: The Commission finds that adequate utilities, access roads, drainage and other 

necessary site improvements have been, are being or will be provided. 

 

5. That the establishment, maintenance or operation of the conditional use is unlikely to increase 

the level of traffic congestion or reduce the level of safety at any point on the public streets.  

 

Finding: The Commission finds that that the establishment, maintenance or operation of the 

conditional use is unlikely to increase the level of traffic congestion or reduce the level of 

safety at any point on the public streets.  

 

6. That the conditional use shall conform to all applicable regulations of the district in which it is 

located. 

 

Finding: The Commission finds that the conditional use conforms to all applicable 

regulations of the district in which it is located. 

 

7. That the conditional use does not violate flood plain regulations governing the site. 

 

Finding: The Commission finds that the project is not in a floodplain.  

 

8. That, when applying the above standards to any new construction of a building, or an addition 

to an existing building, the Plan Commission and Board shall bear in mind the statement of 

purpose for the zoning district such that the proposed building or addition at its location does 

not defeat the purposes and objectives of the zoning district. 

 



 3 

Finding: The Commission finds that the statement of purpose for the zoning district is such 

that the proposed project at its location does not defeat the purposes and objectives of the 

zoning district. 

 

 

The Plan Commission shall also evaluate the effect of the proposed conditional use upon: 
 

 The maintenance of safe and healthful conditions. 

 

Evaluated and no adverse impact  

 

 The prevention and control of water pollution including sedimentation. 

 

Evaluated and no adverse impact. 

 

 Existing topographic and drainage features and vegetative cover on the site. 

 

Evaluated and no adverse impact  

 

 The location of the site with respect to floodplains and floodways of rivers and streams. 

 

Evaluated and no adverse impact  

 

 The erosion potential of the site based upon degree and direction of slope, soil type and 

vegetative cover. 

 

Evaluated and no adverse impact.  

 

 The location of the site with respect to existing or future access roads. 

 

Evaluated and no adverse impact  

 

 The need of the proposed use for a shoreland location. 

 

Evaluated and no adverse impact  

 

 Its compatibility with uses on adjacent land. 

 

The Commission evaluated and concluded that the proposed project is compatible with the 

uses on adjacent lands. 

 

 Any other requirements necessary to fulfill the purpose and intent of the Zoning Code of the 

Village of Shorewood Hills conditions required: 

 

Parking plan and parking permits for all vehicles and equipment to be approved by Police 

Department. Hours of construction to conform to Village noise ordinance.  









































































 1 

Plan Commission Conditional Use Permit Review 

3650 Lake Mendota Drive Project 
 

The Plan Commission hereby forwards its written advisory recommendation to the Village Board 

within after receipt of the application from the Zoning Administrator. The Plan Commission 

recommends approval subject to specified conditions, contained herein.  

 

A conditional use shall be approved under this paragraph only if the applicant 

demonstrates by clear and convincing evidence the following: 

 

1. Views of Lake Mendota from points off the lot on which the development or excavation 

proposed will not be adversely affected.  

 

There will be no adverse impact to views. 

This project will rebuild and stabilize the existing failed slope. The proposed retaining 

wall system will be completely covered with natural vegetation. After full restoration, no 

hardscape features will be visible. From the lake it will appear to be a natural vegetated 

shoreline as existed before the slope failure. 

 

 

2. Erosion will not be increased. 

 

Based on the Village Engineer’s review, there will be will be no increase. The 

proposed project is intended to stabilize the existing failed/exposed slope and provide 

a long-term stabilization solution. The method of construction will also help minimize 

erosion during construction. 

 

3. The flow of surface water will not be changed so as to adversely affect other lots, the lake 

and other aspects of the natural environment.  

 

Based on the Village Engineer’s review, no change in surface water flow as to 

adversely affect other lots, the lake or natural environment is expected. Drainage 

areas for the parcel were analyzed during the design phase to help determine the 

cause of the slope failure. Additional on-site stormwater improvements are proposed 

with this project to help control future stormwater flows and prevent erosion. The 

existing drainage patterns will not be significantly changed. Minor improvements 

including upsizing of storm sewer, re-armoring and improving existing swales are 

proposed to better match projected runoff flows, as shown on the Drainage Plan. 

 

4. Infiltration of surface water into the ground will not be adversely affected. 

 

Based on the Village Engineer’s review, infiltration of water into the ground will not 

be adversely affected. No new impervious areas are proposed. The terraced retaining 

wall system will slow down runoff over the bank slope and allow more stormwater to 

infiltrate. 

 



 2 

5. Access to properties and structures by firefighters and other emergency personnel will not 

be adversely affected. 

 

Access will not be adversely affected. 

 

 

The Plan Commission shall review the application according to the standards below. No 

application shall be recommended for approval by the Plan Commission unless it finds that 

the following conditions are met:  

 

1. That the establishment, maintenance or operation of the conditional use will not be 

detrimental to or endanger the public health, safety, morals, comfort or general welfare. 

 

Finding: The Commission finds the above conditions are met and will not be 

detrimental to or endanger the public health, safety, morals, comfort or general 

welfare.  

 

2. That the uses, values and enjoyment of other property in the neighborhood for purposes 

already permitted shall be in no foreseeable manner substantially impaired or diminished 

by the establishment, maintenance or operation of the conditional use and the proposed 

use is compatible with the use of adjacent land. 

 

Finding: The Commission finds that the uses, values and enjoyment of other property 

in the neighborhood for purposes already permitted are in no foreseeable manner 

substantially impaired or diminished by the establishment, maintenance or operation 

of the conditional use and the proposed use is compatible with the use of adjacent 

land. 

 

3. That the establishment of the conditional use will not impede the normal and orderly 

development and improvement of the surrounding property for uses permitted in the 

district, and will not be contrary to an adopted comprehensive plan of the Village. 

 

Finding: The Commission finds that the establishment of the conditional use will not 

impede the normal and orderly development and improvement of the surrounding 

property for uses permitted in the district, and will not be contrary to an adopted 

comprehensive plan of the Village. 

 

4. That adequate utilities, access roads, drainage and other necessary site improvements 

have been, are being or will be provided. 

  

Finding: The Commission finds that adequate utilities, access roads, drainage and 

other necessary site improvements have been, are being or will be provided. 

 

5. That the establishment, maintenance or operation of the conditional use is unlikely to 

increase the level of traffic congestion or reduce the level of safety at any point on the 

public streets.  

 



 3 

Finding: The Commission finds that that the establishment, maintenance or operation 

of the conditional use is unlikely to increase the level of traffic congestion or reduce 

the level of safety at any point on the public streets.  

 

6. That the conditional use shall conform to all applicable regulations of the district in 

which it is located. 

 

Finding: The Commission finds that the conditional use conforms to all applicable 

regulations of the district in which it is located. 

 

7. That the conditional use does not violate flood plain regulations governing the site. 

 

Finding: The Commission finds that the project is not in a floodplain.  

 

8. That, when applying the above standards to any new construction of a building, or an 

addition to an existing building, the Plan Commission and Board shall bear in mind the 

statement of purpose for the zoning district such that the proposed building or addition at 

its location does not defeat the purposes and objectives of the zoning district. 

 

Finding: The Commission finds that the statement of purpose for the zoning district is 

such that the proposed project at its location does not defeat the purposes and 

objectives of the zoning district. 

 

 

The Plan Commission shall also evaluate the effect of the proposed conditional use upon: 
 

 The maintenance of safe and healthful conditions. 

 

Evaluated and no adverse impact  

 

 The prevention and control of water pollution including sedimentation. 

 

Evaluated and no adverse impact. 

 

 Existing topographic and drainage features and vegetative cover on the site. 

 

Evaluated and no adverse impact  

 

 The location of the site with respect to floodplains and floodways of rivers and streams. 

 

Evaluated and no adverse impact  

 

 The erosion potential of the site based upon degree and direction of slope, soil type and 

vegetative cover. 

 



 4 

Based on the Village Engineer’s review, evaluated and no adverse impact. An erosion 

control and revegetation plan was submitted and approved. 

 

 The location of the site with respect to existing or future access roads. 

 

Evaluated and no adverse impact  

 

 The need of the proposed use for a shoreland location. 

 

Evaluated and no adverse impact  

 

 Its compatibility with uses on adjacent land. 

 

The Commission evaluated and concluded that the proposed project is compatible 

with the uses on adjacent lands. 

 

 Any other requirements necessary to fulfill the purpose and intent of the Zoning Code of 

the Village of Shorewood Hills conditions required: 

 

Parking plan and parking permits for all vehicles and equipment to be approved by 

Police Department. Hours of construction to conform to Village noise ordinance.  



 

Village of Shorewood Hills 

Public Works Committee 

Edgehill Traffic Calming - Executive Summary 

September 2019 

 

 

Introduction 

The Village of Shorewood Hills (VoSH) is dedicated to creating and maintaining a safe 

transportation system for all users through capital improvements, traffic control, 

education, enforcement, and evaluation. Our core community values include safety.  

 

The Public Works Committee (PWC) has heard from a significant number of residents 

(for many years) on concerns specific to Edgehill Drive - one of the most travelled 

streets in the Village.  Residents have communicated to Village staff, board and 

committee members, and the VoSH Police Department. They’ve attended meetings to 

ask our help in making their street feel less dangerous to walk and bike. We take their 

concerns very seriously. Conflicts among vehicles, pedestrians, and bicyclists challenge 

our reputation as a walkable, bikeable, livable village.  

 

With assistance from our Village Engineer and the support of Edgehill residents, we 

propose the installation of three speed humps with  proposed locations highlighting on 

the attached map.  The size will be standard and similar to those found in Madison.  The 

cost is ~$10,000 each for a total of ~$30,000 out of  the Capital Fund. 

 

History 

For context, we reviewed  a draft of the 2015 “Village of Shorewood Hills Traffic Calming 

Policy” (never formally adopted).  It concluded the Village demonstrated successful 

traffic calming based solely on 85th percentile speeds and states “...calming measures 

will only be considered if 85th percentile speeds exceed 32 mph.”   The PWC is working 

on a broader “Safe Streets Initiative” and strives to be pro-active versus reactive, to 

lower what is considered an acceptable speed, and to give priority to our most 

vulnerable street users - pedestrians and bikers.  Vehicle speed will not be the sole 

determinant for safety. 

 

The PWC has, at times, addressed issues brought before them (e.g., the bump-outs on 

University Bay Drive) expediently, and we hope to expand upon that process by not only 

addressing the current issues, but by using this as an opportunity to create a pro-active 

and objective plan that looks to the future.  With respect to the Village and its numerous 

efforts to curb speeds and increase safety, the reality is still that many residents do not 

feel safe sharing the road with motorists.  Parents and children have modified their 

behaviors and/or stopped travelling certain routes altogether.  The Village has 



experienced a change in demographics and a growth in population.  Distracted driving is 

a reality, as is the increase in delivery services for everything from clothing to food.  

 

Safe Streets Initiative 

The Committee has and continues to dedicate time, thought, and research into the 

development of an overarching plan.  With the west side infrastructure reconstruction 

on the horizon, we have a chance to really make a difference.  We need to not only 

address Edgehill, but to objectively lead the Village as a whole.  Our goal is to have a 

targeted, prioritized approach without waiting for complaints or, worse, an accident.  

 

Simply said, the Safe Streets Initiative will strive to eliminate / reduce accidents on our 

roads, avoid near misses, focus on the community’s perception of travel safety and 

comfort, allow unrestricted travel, and address overall Village street safety.  

 

Guiding Principles 

● Pedestrians, cyclists, and transit users are on equal ground with drivers in 

planning and designing.  

● No one should be discouraged from traveling by any mode because of fears 

about safety.  

● Road safety is not a goal, it is a pre-condition. 

● Active safety (prevention) will be promoted rather than passive safety 

(softening the outcome). 

● People will be enabled to reach all designations through bicycle and 

pedestrian infrastructure. 

● Both a location-specific and a systemwide approach that is targeted, 

responsive, and proactive will be used. 

 

Assumptions 

● People are more influenced by perceived safety than actual safety 

statistics. 

● A car driver is liable by default; due to its size and power drivers should 

pay extra attention to other, more vulnerable, road users. 

● Even one small “high-stress” location can change a person’s choice of 

routes or could deter them from choosing to walk or bicycle at all, 

especially if children are involved.  

● Feeling secure plays a role in how people choose to travel. 

● Safe, shared, complete streets are necessary for a neighborhood to thrive 

into the future.   

 

The Safe Streets Initiative is intended to act as a transformative set of actions to 

prioritize travel safety for all.  

 



 

 

 

 

Back to Edgehill 

Included with this summary are the following documents for consideration: 

1. Petition of Support  

2. Proposed Location Map  

3. Public Comments 

4. Speed Impact Graph 

5. Traffic Study Data 

 

The PWC has evaluated options for traffic calming and increased sense of safety on 

Edgehill, one of the busiest roads in the Village. The current road is too narrow for 

sidewalks and medians. The ‘white line’ provides some designated space when used 

correctly and when not blocked by cars or brush but provides no physical separation and 

little or no buffer.  Education efforts are limited in reach, as the road is a major 

thoroughfare and a cut-through for non-residents. Its long, gently curving, 

boulevard-style design invites speeding rather than putting drivers on notice that VoSH 

is a neighborhood where people enjoy the streets, parks, school, pool, lake, and other 

outdoor amenities accessible by foot and bike. 

  

Summary 

Edgehill needs help now. With the significance and number of resident concerns, the 

PWC has voted to recommend to the Board the installation of three speed humps at a 

cost not to exceed $30,000. The Committee would like the installation to take place no 

later than Spring 2020.  

 

 



1105
SHOREWOOD

1116
OAK

1124
OAK

1017
OAK

1123
OAK

1125
OAK

1117
OAK

1011
OAK

1101
OAK

1120
OAK

3407
CIRCLE CLOSE

1220
EDGEHILL

1115OAK

110
7

OAK

1015OAK

1111
OAK

3218
TOPPING

10
08

SH
OR

EW
OO

D

3315
BLACKHAWK

3212

TOPPING

1202
EDGEHILL

3403
CIRCLE CLOSE

1206
EDGEHILL

32
23

TO
PP

IN
G

10
10

ED
GE

HI
LL

3309BLACKHAWK

32
19

TO
PP

IN
G

1006EDGEHILL

1206

SHOREWOOD

3227
TOPPING

3230
TALLY HO

1106
EDGEHILL

3224
TALLY HO

121
2

SHOREWOOD

31
17

OX
FO

RD

32
15

TO
PP

IN
G

3113
OXFORD

3133
OXFORD

1124
EDGEHILL

31
21

OX
FO

RD

33
00

TA
LL

Y H
O

1214
EDGEHILL

12
20

SH
OR

EW
OO

D

1112EDGEHILL

322
0

TO
PPING

3109
OXFORD

1007
EDGEHILL

32
11

TO
PP

IN
G

1001
EDGEHILL

1005
EDGEHILL

1201
EDGEHILL

1133
EDGEHILL

1215
SHOREWOOD

32
20

TA
LL

Y H
O

1120EDGEHILL

12
04

BO
WD

OI
N

1130EDGEHILL

32
09

TO
PP

ING

31
25

OX
FO

RD

1225

EDGEHILL

3203
TOPPING

1130
SHOREWOOD

1009
EDGEHILL

1138

SHOREWOOD

1127
EDGEHILL

1126
SHOREWOOD

120
8

BO
WDO

IN

1122
SHOREWOOD

1125
EDGEHILL

12
05

SH
OR

EW
OO

D

12
01

SH
OR

EW
OO

D

1120
SHOREWOOD

1015
EDGEHILL

1123
EDGEHILL

1111
EDGEHILL

1018
SHOREWOOD

1209
SHOREW

OOD

1110
SHOREWOOD

1102
SHOREWOOD

1117
EDGEHILL

1101
EDGEHILL

1022
SHOREWOOD

1114
SHOREWOOD

1105
EDGEHILL 1106

SHOREWOOD

1202

SHOREWOOD

1014
SHOREWOOD

121
9

SHOREWOOD

32
25

TO
PP

IN
G

1115
EDGEHILL

1136
SHOREWOOD

122
2

SH
ORE

WOO
D

1006
EDGEHILL

Ed
ge

hil
l D

r

Sh
ore

wo
od

 Bl
vd

Oak Way

Oxford Rd

Topping Rd

Bla
ckh

aw
k D

r

Bo
wd

oin
 Rd

Harvard Dr

LEGEND
Streets
Tax Parcels

cs70921iid.sid
RGB

Red:    Band_1
Green: Band_2
Blue:   Band_3

cs70917iid.sid
RGB

Red:    Band_1
Green: Band_2
Blue:   Band_3

cs70916iid.sid
RGB

Red:    Band_1
Green: Band_2
Blue:   Band_3

Town & Country Engineering, Inc. makes no representation regarding the accuracy or completeness of this map
and its underlying data.  Any use or reuse of this map will be at your own risk and without liability or legal
exposure to Town & Country Engineering, Inc.  Not to be used for utility marking for purposes of Digger's Hotline.

¯

Date: 6/10/2019

Potential Traffic Calming Locations
Edgehill Drive

Village of Shorewood Hills

0 50 10025

Feet

2912  M ark e tp l ace  D r ive2912  M ark e tp l ace  D r ive
Su i te  103Su i te  103
Mad i son ,  W I 5 3719Mad i son ,  W I 5 3719
(608 ) 273 - 3350(608 ) 273 - 3350
ww w .t ceng i nee rs .ne tww w .t ceng i nee rs .ne t

Path: J:\JOB#S\Shorewood Hills\SH-00-00\Mapping\Old Mapping\Shorewood Hills Working Map.mxd

POTENTIAL LOCATION





 

 

18

20

22

24

26

28

30

32

34
1

-U
n

iv
er

si
ty

 B
ay

 D
r.

 2
7

0
 f

t 
n

o
rt

h
 o

f 
H

ig
h

la
n

d
A

ve
.

2
-U

n
iv

er
si

ty
 B

ay
 D

r.
 3

5
0

 f
t 

so
u

th
 o

f 
H

ar
va

rd
 D

r.

3
-O

xf
o

rd
 R

d
. 2

0
0

 f
t 

ea
st

 o
f 

Sw
ee

tb
ri

ar
 R

d
.

4
-E

d
ge

h
ill

 D
r.

 1
8

0
 f

t 
so

u
th

 o
f 

B
la

ck
h

aw
k 

D
r.

5
-E

d
ge

h
ill

 D
r.

 4
9

0
 f

t 
n

o
rt

h
 o

f 
To

p
p

in
g 

R
d

.

6
-S

h
o

re
w

o
o

d
 B

lv
d

. 1
8

6
 f

ee
t 

n
o

rt
h

 o
f 

Lo
cu

st
 D

r.

7
-S

h
o

re
w

o
o

d
 B

lv
d

. 4
8

0
 f

t 
so

u
th

 o
f 

B
o

w
d

o
in

 R
d

.

8
-L

ak
e 

M
en

d
o

ta
 D

r.
 2

0
6

 f
t 

ea
st

 o
f 

Ed
ge

h
ill

 D
r.

9
-L

ak
e 

M
en

d
o

ta
 D

r.
 1

2
4

0
 f

t 
ea

st
 o

f 
Su

m
ac

 D
r.

1
0

-C
o

lu
m

b
ia

 R
d

. D
ar

tm
o

u
th

 R
d

. t
o

 U
n

iv
er

si
ty

B
ay

 D
r.

1
1

-E
d

ge
h

ill
 D

r.
 E

d
ge

h
ill

 P
kw

y.
 t

o
 B

la
ck

h
aw

k 
D

r.

1
2

-B
la

ck
h

aw
k 

D
r.

 E
d

ge
h

ill
 D

r.
 t

o
 T

o
p

p
in

g 
R

d
.

1
3

-O
xf

o
rd

 R
d

. S
h

o
re

w
o

o
d

 B
lv

d
. t

o
 D

ar
tm

o
u

th
R

d
.

1
4

-H
ar

va
rd

 D
r.

 Y
al

e 
R

d
. t

o
 U

n
iv

e
rs

it
y 

B
ay

 D
r.

Sp
ee

d
 (

m
p

h
)

Shorewood Hills Traffic Study
85% 2018

95% 2018

85% 1988

2018 Speed
Limit

1988 Speed
Limit

0

1000

2000

3000

4000

5000

6000

7000

8000

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14

Tr
af

fi
c 

C
o

u
n

ts

Shorewood Hills Traffic Study 2018 1988



Table 1: Shorewood Hills Traffic Study Summary 

  

Average Daily 
Counts Speed 

2018 1988 2018 1988 

  Street Location    85% 95% 85% 

1 University Bay Drive 270 ft north of Highland Avenue 2179   24 28   

2 University Bay Drive 350 ft south of Harvard Drive 2063   25 28   

3 Oxford Road 200 ft east of Sweetbriar Road 1298   26 29   

4 Edgehill Drive 180 ft south of Blackhawk Drive 1134 2120 24 28 32 

5 Edgehill Drive 490 ft north of Topping Road 1305 2120 24 27 32 

6 Shorewood Blvd 186 feet north of Locust Drive 5139 7150 23 24 26 

7 Shorewood Blvd 480 ft south of Bowdoin Road 1945 3062 23 24 30 

8 Lake Mendota Drive 206 ft east of Edgehill Drive 1322   24 28 30 

9 Lake Mendota Drive 1240 ft east of Sumac Drive 1173   24 28 33 

10 Columbia Road Dartmouth Road to University Bay Drive   535     23 

11 Edgehill Drive Edgehill Pkwy. to Blackhawk Drive   2350     30 

12 Blackhawk Drive Edgehill Drive to Topping Road   297     27 

13 Oxford Road Shorewood Blvd. to Dartmouth Road   900     23 

14 Harvard Drive Yale Road to University Bay Drive   292     19 

 



 
Comments from residents, November 2015 
 
Hi Cara. I know Ron emailed you to say we are out of town and regrettably will not be home for the 
meeting about the situation of speeding on Edgehill and elsewhere in Shorewood. I would just like to 
express that I think the situation could be rectified if the police would ticket speeders. I never see any 
speed traps in Shorewood and if there was an all out effort by the police to crack down on 
speeders I think the word would quickly spread and drivers would slow down.  I would think 
that that would be the main focus of their job; to keep everyone safe in our community that is 
such a walking community. I'd be happy to offer my driveway as a place where the police could sit 
and do speed checks. Good luck at the meeting. 
 
(Mary Jane Campo, Edgehill Dr., grandma) 
 
 
Thanks for the e-mail.  F.Y. I, we are out of town until Tuesday, November 10th, so we will miss the 
meeting. 
 
We do, however, support all reasonable efforts to make our street safer for our Kids and walking 
Pedestrians.  We will work with our neighbors on this.  Please keep us posted. 
 
Best Regards - Ron & Mary Jane Campo 
 
 
Living on Bowdoin Road, we see a lot of drivers racing down Bowdoin Road and Shorewood 
Boulevard.  (We can literally see the street out our front window.)  As parents, we don't feel 
comfortable letting our children cross either our street or Bowdoin Road because so many drivers 
speed by and there is no marked crosswalk for them to use to safely cross. 
 
Thankfully, once they reach the sidewalk, they are able to walk safely to school, to the Heiden Haus, to 
the playground and, in the winter, the sledding hill.   

One of the reasons we moved to the Village is we like being able to walk.  Where possible, we would 
like to see MORE sidewalks and crosswalks and speed bumps.  Especially in light of the recent 
tragedy this summer, we strongly support any measure that makes pedestrians and bikers safer, even 
if it means losing part of our property (via the right of way) in the process. 

The lack of sidewalks on so many major streets, including a portion of Edgehill, limits our ability to walk 
safely around the neighborhood.  We were particularly dismayed that no sidewalk was added to 
Columbia Road when it was redone recently.  We hope you and the board will make a different 
decision on Edgehill Drive and as you consider sidewalks and other safety measures in and around 
the Village. 

Thank you for taking the time to consider our thoughts.  And as always, thanks for all you and your 
staff do! 

Our best, 
Colleen & Mike Titelbaum 
 
I'm sorry I'm not going to be able to make it to the meeting this evening.  But if there is anything I can 
do (besides attend the meeting) to help...we are here!  And we are more than happy to put a sign in 
our yard, or I can purchase a yellow person online if you think that will help a bit. 
 
Thanks for heading this up! 
 
Lisa (Lisa Wells, husband Shane, and 2 school-age kids) 



 
 
    Will the safety of edgehill drive also include the intersection at lake Mendota Dr? That its a large 
concern for me and my kids because we cross it every day and it is always a frightening event ;). The 
cars turn off lake Mendota onto edgehill extremely fast and are not looking for pedestrians. I am 
hoping for a stop sign with pedestrian cross way to be put in. I'm not sure if your meeting will only 
be addressing the one block of edgehill or not. Let me know. 
 
Thanks 
Tracy (Tracy Koziol, husband, and three young kids, Lake Mendota Drive) 
 
 
Thanks, Cara. For our part, we feel the same about Topping rd. Speed and awareness, particularly 
in the evening has been noticeably worse since the resurfacing. 
 
A trial of test bumps on edgehill would be a welcome experiment, as the change in structure of the 
Edgehill at Topping intersection has increased awareness of cross traffic and pedestrians, and 
changed behavior at that intersection.  
Will try to join Monday, but looking at my clinic, not optimistic.  
 
Sam (Sam Lubner, wife Meg, and three young kids, Topping Road) 
 
 
Hi Mark: 
  
I hope to attend the Public Works Committee meeting, but am not sure that I can make it. 
In case I cannot, here are some concerns that I would try to register: 
I have three: 
  
First, I do not know why they have not repaved Edgehill Drive between LMD and Edgehill Parkway; it is 
very rough and uneven for walkers. 
  
Second, I would like to see a painted/striped walking path along the west side of Edgehill Drive between 
LMD and Edgehill Parkway.  It should quiet the cars coming from the east on LMD, making the turn.  
However, the painted/striped walking area would not be visible in the winter.  Alternative policies might 
be:  
  

1. A stop sign at the bottom of the LMD hill; it would eliminate the fast and wide turns. 
2. Speed bumps coming down the LMD hill from the east.  

  
I’ve had several prior conversations with Karl Frantz about these, but nothing has happened.  
  
Third, I think that there should be a crosswalk at LMD and Edgehill Drive—for folks walking on the west 
side of Edgehill Drive and wanting to walk across LMD to the bridge. 
  
I hope to see you there.  I believe that there will be a number of residents on Edgehill Drive in attendance. 
  
Bob 
********************** 
Professor Robert Haveman  
Department of Economics  
Robert M. La Follette School of Public Affairs  
University of Wisconsin-Madison 
 



Nov. 9, 2015 
 
My name is Cara Coburn Faris, and I live with my husband, my 5-year old daughter, and 
my 2-year old son at 1124 Edgehill Drive. I’m here to address the fifth agenda item and 
share observations and concerns regarding pedestrian safety. ______ are also here, and I 
received comments from about 10 others who wanted to be here but can’t. I can share 
some of those with you if time allows, but I’ll try to summarize them here. 
 
We moved to Shorewood Hills from the near east side of Madison and have lived here 
almost 2 ½ years. This neighborhood enchanted us with it family-sized homes that feel 
nestled in the woods yet that are within walking distance of an amazing elementary 
school, good jobs, good groceries, and good summer and winter recreation.  
 
What I didn’t anticipate is that in spite of the reasonable posted speed limits—Edgehill’s 
is 20 mph—motor vehicles rule the roads in Shorewood Hilles. We were terrified our 
first few weeks in our new home to see, from the safety of our living room, cars racing 
down Edgehill Drive at what we estimated to be 40 mph. Since the repaving of Edgehill, 
we are more terrified. Drivers are going faster. 
 
The Village’s Comprehensive Plan, adopted Dec. 2009, states the following 
Transportation goals: 

● Enhance the quality of the Village by reducing the negative impacts of 
transportation and auto traffic; and 

● Make the entire Village pedestrian and bicycle friendly. 
 
Now I don’t know what drivers who go 40 mph down Edgehill Drive are thinking, but I 
do know that data tells us that Edgehill is one of the most heavily travelled roads in the 
Village (along with Lake Mendota Drive and U Bay Drive). The speed strips that were 
put out in the summer after the repaving measured traffic counts at about 1,000 vehicles 
per day. Among these 1000 vehicles are a Madison Metro bus that always passes the 
bottom of my steep driveway going about 30 miles per hour. 
 
The speed strips also told us that 85th percentile speeds on Edgehill were in the 26-28 
mph range. With rough math this means that during the times when kids are walking to 
and from school, every couple minutes a car races by at 28 mph. My personal observation 
tells me that it’s worse than what was captured in this summers’ numbers (I believe much 
of this data was collected when speed reader boards, which are considered a traffic 
calming tool, were up). And everyone knows that the faster cars go, the more difficult it 
is for them to stop to avoid hitting something, even if they are driving attentively.  
 
We don’t have data on the volume of walkers on Edgehill, but I can tell you that people 
young and old walk on the road during rush hour and other times. We personally would 
walk much more, and we would allow our kids to play in our driveway and front yard, 
and to ride their trikes and bikes on the street, if we weren’t afraid of the motor vehicles. I 
have heard the same over and over from other parents in the Village. 
 



We are grateful that the Village reconstructed the Edgehill and Topping intersection. This 
happened after Abby Shu was almost hit by a driver who swooped around the corner and 
drove between her and her mom and they crossed Edgehill Drive on their way home from 
school. I don’t want to wait for another near miss or worse before we address the known 
dangers. 
 
Here are some things that could be considered on Edgehill in the short-term: 

● Stepped up enforcement. More monitoring, more warnings, more ticketing. One 
of my neighbors whose grandchildren live in the Village said that she “would 
think that it would be the main focus of [the Village Police]—to keep everyone 
safe in our community that is such a walking community.” 

● Pressuring users to keep clear a small pathway along the sides of the road. When 
there was a line on Edgehill, the Police sometimes ticketed people who parked in 
the pathway, but now that there is no line, cars routinely park along the edge of 
the road. People also pile their refuse on the paved road rather than on the grassy 
right of way. Children walking and riding bikes have to veer significantly into the 
traffic lanes to progress along the road. 

● Speed humps, a speed-reader board, and more threatening speed limit signs. I 
think these are a no-brainer. 

● Where striping is concerned, I agree with Committee member Rick Chappell that 
“physical barriers make kids much safer than paint.” 

 
So in the long-term, I think we need to consider engineered ways of calming traffic and 
creating a safe physical pathway for pedestrians to get along this heavily travelled road. 
We should honor the Comprehensive Plan’s recommendation of “using street design to 
calm traffic on Village streets.” So let’s talk about options for sharing Edgehill: 

● narrowing the street: Planner knows that *“wide lanes, long block lengths [which 
we have on Edgehill], and open skies . . . communicate to drivers that higher 
speeds are appropriate.” 

● taking advantage of the wide right of ways. If I’m reading the maps correctly, on 
the west side of Edgehill between Shorewood Blvd and Topping are in the 22-28 
foot range and on the east side are in the 7-15 foot range. 

● Ultimately, putting sidewalks on one or both sides of the street so that pedestrians 
have a safe, dedicated pathway that runs parallel to and is physically distinct 
from the dedicated pathway that vehicles have. 

 
I worry about another close call or another tragedy. Change is messy and difficult, but 
this neighborhood and the people who live, work, and learn here, especially its kids, are 
so worth it. Please work with us on this. Thank you so much for your time tonight and for 
all you do for the Village. 
 
* Wes Craiglow, Deputy Director Planning & Development, City of Conway, AR says "… different street 
designs [influence how] you feel as a driver, and ultimately affect how you behave behind the wheel. 
Generally speaking. . . narrower travel lanes, shorter block lengths, and a tree canopy, all contribute to 
drivers traveling more slowly. Conversely, wide lanes, long block lengths, and open skies . . . communicate 
to drivers that higher speeds are appropriate. 
 





Village of Shorewood Hills meeting with 
Dane County Exec Joe Parisi 

Impacts/recovery from Aug. 20, 2018, catastrophic flash flood  
 

August 29, 2019 
 
1) Introductions and time check. 
2) Proposed use of our time together/how can we be most helpful to you? 
3) Flash flood impact on Village. 

a) No one died, we were lucky. 
b) Major impacts: 

i) Estimated $10M in damages in Village (public and private). 
ii) University Ave impassable for hours (public safety risk since that artery is 

regularly used for ambulance runs to UW Hospitals/Children’s Hospital 
from the North, West and South). 

iii) Over 80 homes and businesses impacted, most focused on the University 
Ave corridor area (Garden Homes area hit very hard, 16 homes 
demolished; new apartment building underground garages flooded). 

iv) Railroad track ballast gave way, extending flooding as far north as the 
Shorewood School soccer fields.  

v) Village Hall. 
vi) Village Pool ($1M liability hit, insured). 
vii) Village Parks and outfall areas on Lake Mendota. 

4) Praise for Dane County Emergency Management’s actions before, during and 
after event. 

5) Working closely with City of Madison on potential ways to remediate future flash 
flood potential. 

6) Short walking tour: 
a) Village Pool. 
b) Garden Homes neighborhood. 

7) Questions? 
8) Thank you for visiting! 
 
Attach. (Inundation area map) 
 
 







 

 

1 of 2 

 

Village of Shorewood Hills 

Finance Committee 

Draft Meeting Minutes 

Wednesday, July 10, 2019 
 

1. Call to Order 
Finance Committee Chairperson Mark Lederer called the meeting to order at 5:31 pm. 

 

2. Roll Call Committee 
Members present were Mr. Lederer, Gard Strother, Karl Wellensiek, Dave Ahmann, Sean 

Cote, and John Imes. Carl Gulbrandsen was excused. Also in attendance Village 

Administrator Karl Frantz and Administrative Services Manager/Deputy Clerk David 

Sykes. 

 

3. Note Compliance with open meeting laws 
Mr. Frantz confirmed the meeting had been properly posted and noticed. 

 

4. Review/approve June 12, 2019 Finance meeting minutes 

 Mr. Strother moved and Mr. Cote second a motion to approve the June 10, 2019 minutes. 

 Motion approved 6-0-1 (Mr. Wellensiek abstaining because he did not attend the 

previous meeting). 

 

5. Review of draft Village sustainability plan 

This item was postponed until a future meeting. 

 

6. Review Village capital plan, financing, debt capacity and possible recommendations 

Mr. Frantz reviewed the status of the capital fund. The Village will remain near its 

internal debt limit until 2024-2025. The money on hand in the capital fund can be used to 

pay for equipment and projects over the next few years. Advances loaned to the water 

and sewer utilities will be paid back to the capital fund over that same period. In addition, 

the Village transferred residual money in the debt service fund to the capital fund in 

2018. The capital improvement plan has been designed to use the funds available in the 

capital fund for the next few years until the Village’s debt levels decrease. 

Mr. Frantz explained a capital fund detail worksheet that shows fund levels based on 

returns and projected expenses through 2023. A small deficit in the capital fund is 

projected for 2021. A larger deficit is projected for 2023 due to the expenses related to 

the Rustic Bridge replacement. 

Mr. Frantz reported there are some road projects (resurface Hunter Hill and/or Highbury 

Road) that may need to be done in 2020 but are not in the five-year capital plan. Each 

project could cost about $50K. Committees may request other projects not in the capital 

plan. The Board may need to make some policy choices based on the funds available. 

Mr. Frantz has been in talks with Brad Viegut of Baird to determine what borrowing 

capacity the Village currently has without damaging its AAA bond rating and remaining 

below the internal debt limit. Mr. Viegut indicated that the Village could borrow ~$1.1M 

from 2020-2024. Mr. Frantz cautioned that the Village should be judicious with this 

borrowing capacity because some large projects with unknown costs (i.e. University 

Avenue reconstruction) are coming in the next few years. 



 

 

2 of 2 

 

 

7. Review and possible recommendations regarding stormwater utility rates 

Mr. Lederer explained that the stormwater utility is expected to show a deficit in 2019. 

The Finance Committee has been charged with task of determining if the Village should 

make a rate adjustment. 

Mr. Frantz explained that expenses have outpaced revenues for years but it has been all 

right because the utility had built up a large surplus. Mr. Lederer added that the utility has 

not had a rate adjustment since its inception in 2007. 

Mr. Frantz explained a spreadsheet of revenues, expenses and surplus (deficit) for the 

stormwater utility. Increasing the fee from $9.18 per ERU (Equivalent Residential Unit) 

to $13.00 per ERU will generate about $211K additional revenue. That would cover the 

projected deficit in 2019 and slowly build a surplus in the utility without reducing current 

stormwater projects. 

Mr. Imes asked about how the fees are calculated. Mr. Frantz said each residential lot, 

regardless of size, is considered 1 ERU. For commercial properties, an ERU is considered 

2,941 S.F. of impervious surface. A calculation is made to determine each properties total 

ERUs. Mr. Imes was concerned that we are not incentivizing the installation of green 

infrastructure or raingardens. Mr. Frantz said there might be more efficient ways to 

promote conservation. 

Mr. Lederer felt that the equity of how ERUs are calculated is a separate policy issue. 

Mr. Ahmann suggested an incremental increase to the utility fee over three years and 

possibly add a cost of living increase annually thereafter. 

Mr. Cote was concerned about the projected deficit and would be in favor of doing the 

rate adjustment as soon as possible, rather than waiting until the beginning of 2020. 

Mr. Cote moved and Mr. Wellensiek seconded a motion to recommend the Board 

increase the monthly stormwater fee from $9.18 to $13.00 per ERU for implementation 

as soon as practicable. 

Motion approved 6-0. 

 

8. Set next meeting date 

The Committee decided not to meet in August ahead of the multiple budget meetings in 

September and October. 

 

9. The meeting was adjourned at 6:33 pm. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

 

David Sykes 

Administrative Services Manager/Deputy Clerk 



 

Page 1 of 4 

APPROVED MINUTES FOR THE VILLAGE OF SHOREWOOD HILLS 

PLAN COMMISSION 
 

The Tuesday, July 9, 2019 meeting of the Plan Commission was called to order at 7:00 pm by 

Chair Dave Benforado. Members present were: Mr. Benforado, Deb Remington, Jim Etmanczyk, 

Karl Wellensiek, Earl Munson, Brauna Hartzell and John Imes. Also present was Karl Frantz, 

Village Administrator, Scott Harrington of Vandewalle and David Sykes, Administrative Services 

Manager/Deputy Clerk. About sixteen visitors were in the audience. 

 

Mr. Frantz confirmed the meeting had been properly posted and noticed. 

 

Public Hearing on conditional use permit for new home construction on property located at 

3580 Lake Mendota Drive 

Mr. Benforado opened the public hearing at 7:02 pm, at which time Mr. Munson recused himself 

from the Commission and joined the audience. Mr. Frantz reported that the owner’s application 

had been reviewed and the proposed home meets all the regulations for floor area, height and 

setbacks. The existing home was north of the lakefront setback line and the proposed home will 

be behind (south) of the lakefront setback line. The Village engineer reviewed the completed 

erosion control and stormwater management plans. He found them to meet the Village 

requirements. 

Property owner Fred Robertson provided a synopsis of the home plan. The lot has challenging 

topography. The south to north and east to west slopes complicated the erosion control measures 

and lake access. The site plan was developed to meet Village zoning regulations. The home was 

positioned to the east as much as possible to allow a buffer to manage water on the west side. 

Asking for consideration for lake access to include an 8’ wide concrete pad on the west side of the 

bluff for access. 

Mr. Imes asked if there was any damage from the August 20, 2018 flood. Mr. Robertson said no 

since the existing home has now been demolished. 

Mr. Benforado asked if he had discussed the project with his neighbors. Mr. Robertson said he had 

and all seem to support the construction. Mr. Benforado added that the Berbee/Walsh family sent 

a letter of support to the Plan Commission. 

Earl Munson, 3610 Lake Mendota Drive, is the neighbor directly to the west of Robertson’s 

property. He is generally in support of the new home being constructed and lake access but he does 

have some concerns about the water management plan. He feels there will be a major change to 

the lot elevations that could change the natural water flow through the natural ravine on the west 

side of the lot. Making a change to that ditch could affect water flow. By ordinance, an artificial 

drain must accommodate a 10-year storm event at a minimum (4” of rain in 24-hour period). He 

is concerned if the natural drainage ditch is turned into lawn, it could cause water in his or the new 

home’s basement. He is also concerned the pipe could not accommodate a storm like the one on 

August 20, 2018. He feels the Commission should approve the application except the stormwater 

management plan that may need to be modified. 

Mr. Robertson agrees that he does not want water in anyone’s basement and is willing to work 

with Mr. Munson if any problems arise. 

Dan Bromley suggested a performance bond related to the water management to protect Mr. 

Munson. Mr. Munson feels that would be adversarial and would not want to impose that on the 

Robertsons. 

Mr. Benforado closed the public hearing at 7:40 pm. 

Mr. Wellensiek asked if Mr. Robertson’s engineer had been apprised of Mr. Munson’s concerns. 

Mr. Robertson said the engineer feels his plan will adequately address water management. 



 

Page 2 of 4 

Ms. Hartzell asked what type of material will be used for the driveway and if they considered a 

porous surface. Mr. Robertson said regular concrete will be used and they are putting in a much 

shorter driveway that what existed before the home was demolished. 

Mr. Imes asked about the calculations for roof runoff. Mr. Frantz indicated the minimum is 90% 

of the runoff captured for a 10-year event. Mr. Imes suggested they consider oversizing the 

raingarden to collect almost 100% of the roof runoff. 

Mr. Wellensiek moved and Mr. Imes seconded a motion to approve the draft findings after review. 

 

Findings and recommendation on conditional use permit for property located at 3580 Lake 

Mendota Drive 

Mr. Benforado reviewed the draft findings prepared by staff. 

Ms. Remington questioned if the Commission could “definitively approve” the findings if there 

are still questions about the stormwater management. She does not feel she has the expertise to 

evaluate the engineering. 

Mr. Benforado feels the Commission may need to rely on the Village engineers for their review. 

Mr. Wellensiek would like to include the engineer’s review into the findings. 

By consensus, the following language was inserted in the beginning of some of the findings: 

“Based on the calculations provided by the applicant’s engineer and reviewed by the Village 

engineer…” 

Ms. Remington and Mr. Imes further suggested a note in the findings that stated the applicant and 

property owner to the west have agreed to discuss the issue if a stormwater problem arises. 

Mr. Benforado suggested adding the option of obtaining a variance from the Zoning Board of 

Appeals for the patio to be closer than 3’ setback from the lot line. 

The motion to approve the revised findings was approved 6-0 (Mr. Munson recused). 

 

Mr. Munson rejoined the Commission at 8:26 pm. 

 

Plan Commission review of Village Sustainability Plan with comments/recommendations 

Cara Coburn Faris summarized the Sustainability Plan. The ad hoc Sustainability Committee 

brainstormed a number of ideas and talked with staff to determine their feasibility. The guiding 

document was developed such that it could be included in the Comprehensive Plan to guide 

committees, possible zoning changes and mostly Village operations. 

Mr. Imes noted the plan dates were 2020-2025, so he suggested it be comparable with the 

Comprehensive Plan on a 10-year schedule. Ms. Faris commented that green technology is moving 

so fast that the Sustainability Plan may need to be more nimble than a 10-year review. 

Mr. Imes also suggested tying flooding to building resilience, avoiding property damage. 

 

Update on amendment to intergovernmental agreement with the City of Madison concerning 

design engineering of the University Avenue reconstruction project and University Avenue 

corridor stormwater management 

Mr. Benforado reviewed the presentation by Amber Leffers of AE2S at the June 12 special Board 

meeting. He pointed out a map of possible infiltration area(s) for the large stormwater pipe under 

Blackhawk Golf Course. Mr. Frantz cautioned that these are preliminary design estimates and the 

size could change for any number of reasons. 

Mr. Benforado said there are a number of things that could make the tunnel an impossibility, for 

example ground feasibility, extreme cost, no approval for federal funding. The feasibility study 

results are expected from AE2S in September/October. At about that same time decision on federal 

fund assistance will be made. 

 



 

Page 3 of 4 

Garden Homes comprehensive plan amendment including possible discussion regarding 

Degen and Associates concept plan 

Mr. Benforado recused himself at 8:44 pm and joined the audience. 

Mr. Imes opened the meeting for public comment on Degen and Associates concept plan and a 

possible comprehensive plan amendment related to Garden Homes. 

The comments included the following points: 

 The concept plan did not include anything discussed during the Vandewalle planning meetings. 

 The concept plan presentation was misleading with respect to flooding, building size and 

height. 

 The Village is under no obligation to rezone the area to accommodate Degen and Associates 

proposal. 

 Some residents have invested a lot of money to restore their damaged homes. Don’t want a 

large apartment building in their back yard. 

 The concept plan would not be an improvement to the neighborhood. 

 Stormwater mitigation should be considered before any development and the concept plan does 

not address flood concerns. 

 Suggested the open land may be an opportunity for possible flood mitigation. 

 Density is not needed in the Village; affordable single-family homes are needed for young and 

older families. 

 There are other commercial areas in the Village that could be developed for apartments. 

 Suggestion to buyout the existing homes if the flooding issue cannot be resolved. 

 All of the homes in Garden Homes are non-conforming homes in relation to the current zoning 

code. To rebuild single-family homes some kind of zoning change would be needed. 

 Mr. Degen was reported to have said, at his December 6, 2018 neighborhood meeting that he 

would prefer a more dense development but if the Village chose to only allow single-family 

homes that would be what Degen and Associates would building. 

 Suggestion that the Commission think about the housing stock in the Village and what is 

missing (i.e. senior housing). 

 The construction cost to build single-family homes may not allow for affordable homes. 

Mr. Imes suggested a discussion on the Degen and Associates proposal compared to the 

Vandewalle development objectives. 

Scott Harrington of Vandewalle said many of the comments tonight were similar to those made 

during throughout the planning process. Degen and Associates proposal did comply with some, 

but not all of the development objectives. 

Ms. Hartzell asked if apartments were part of the discussion. Mr. Harrington said the development 

objectives are intentionally vague, all types of residential development should be considered. 

There was no preference to any one type of housing. 

Ms. Remington asked if marketing to seniors is needed in the Madison area. Mr. Harrington said 

yes, most of the communities he works in are considering development to allow for aging in place 

for residents to remain in the community. 

Mr. Imes suggested the Commission go through the development objectives in detail at its next 

meeting. 

 

Mr. Benforado rejoined the Commission at 10:08 pm. 

 

  



 

Page 4 of 4 

Review and possible recommendation on proposal to update Village comprehensive plan in 

2020 

The Village contacted Gary Becker, formerly of Vandewalle, about working on this project but 

have not heard back from him yet. 

 

Minutes: June 10, 2019 

Ms. Remington suggested the addition of verbiage to clarify one of Mr. Degen’s comments. Ms. 

Hartzell moved and Mr. Munson seconded a motion to approve the June 10, 2019 minutes with 

the minor addition. 

Vote: Approved 5-0-2 (Mr. Wellensiek and Mr. Etmanczyk abstaining). 

 

Set Next Meeting 

By consensus, the Commission decided to cancel the regular monthly meeting in August and 

consider an alternate date, if a meeting is needed. 

 

Adjourn 

The meeting was adjourned at 10:11 pm. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

 

David Sykes 

Administrative Services Manager/Deputy Clerk 



 

Page 1 of 3 

APPROVED MINUTES FOR THE VILLAGE OF SHOREWOOD HILLS 

PLAN COMMISSION 
 

The Tuesday, August 6, 2019 meeting of the Plan Commission was called to order at 7:00 pm by 

Chair Dave Benforado. Members present were: Mr. Benforado, Deb Remington, Jim Etmanczyk, 

Karl Wellensiek, Earl Munson, Brauna Hartzell and John Imes. Also present was Karl Frantz, 

Village Administrator, Scott Harrington of Vandewalle and David Sykes, Administrative Services 

Manager/Deputy Clerk. About twelve visitors were in the audience. 

 

Mr. Frantz confirmed the meeting had been properly posted and noticed. 

 

Discussion/recommendation on comprehensive plan amendment for Garden Homes (this 

item was taken out of order by consensus) 

Mr. Benforado recused himself at 7:01 pm and joined the audience. Mr. Imes chaired the meeting. 

It was suggested the Commission work through the Development Objectives established during 

the Vandewalle meetings earlier this year to evaluate the Degen and Associates redevelopment 

proposal and a possible comprehensive plan amendment for Garden Homes. 

1) Mitigate Flood Damage. 

Mr. Frantz provided an update. AE2S is developing a feasibility study of the stormwater tunnel 

under Blackhawk County Club. Hopefully, there will be a draft report that can be presented 

verbally at the end of August. AE2S has subcontracted with Black & Veatch to evaluate the 

Blackhawk property. They are not concerned as the soil/stone conditions appear to be adequate. 

The only evidence of the tunnel’s construction would be the inlet and outlet. About an acre of land 

will be needed to mobilize equipment. The major cost of this type of project is the 

construction/rehabilitation of a tunneling machine. An initial suggestion has been to avoid 

redevelopment in the Garden Homes are until decisions are made on the tunnel project. 

Mr. Frantz added that the Municipal Planning Organization (MPO) approval for funding of the 

tunnel be added to the University Avenue project is not looking promising. However, no decision 

has been made yet. Rob Phillips of City of Madison Engineering is looking for alternative funding. 

Mr. Imes reviewed aspects of the development objectives including filling the low-lying areas, 

mechanicals located above flood level or flood-proofed, basements avoided or engineered to 

withstand hydrostatic pressures from supersaturated soils, and method of elevation should not 

adversely affect any other parcel in Garden Homes. Also, incorporate stormwater management 

practices like impervious areas being less than 40%, sustainable stormwater features should be 

used such as green roof, rain barrels, rain gardens, pervious surfaces, bioretention basins, etc. 

Mr. Imes suggested, if redevelopment were to occur, could the Village require green infrastructure. 

Mr. Munson pointed out that the Degen and Associates proposal deals with flood water falling as 

rain within the neighborhood, not surface water from flash flooding in the watershed. 

The Village’s planning consultant, Scott Harrington of Vandewalle, explained the green 

infrastructure options for possible redevelopment. Many would be incorporated in a new 

development by best practices. The cost may be a little higher but the developer would pay much 

of it. The Village would likely be responsible for any redesign of Burbank Place. 

Mr. Frantz said, if redevelopment occurs, the streets would likely be reconstructed with traditional 

storm sewer, grades and other green features to improve water capture/flow. Generally, all 

infrastructure has been developer funded because projects are usually profitable. If the developer 

can show that the project would not be profitable with the infrastructure costs, then public 

assistance may be involved. 



 

Page 2 of 3 

Ms. Hartzell suggested the development might take time to proceed. Maple Terrace residents could 

use some relief now (curb, gutter, terrace regrade). She asked how the Commission balances these 

points of view. 

Mr. Harrington pointed out that a comprehensive plan amendment, by its nature, is typically 

aspirational, not regulatory document.  Tying to be qualitative and aspirational, not specific. 

Mr. Imes asked about the long-term impact of a Tax Increment District (TID) for Garden Homes. 

Mr. Frantz said a $4-5M new development (increment) would allow for ~$1M borrowed to be paid 

back over 10-15 years for a project plan decided upon by the Village. Residential TIDs have more 

strict rules. 

Mr. Harrington added that the Village engineer has concluded that raising the buildings or filling 

in the low-lying areas above flood level would not adversely affect neighboring properties. The 

water would push a little further up Midvale Blvd, Blackhawk Ave, etc. It would not make the 

existing situation worse. 

2) Maintain Cohesive Neighborhood Feel. Any development should integrate existing homes 

rather than isolating them. 

Mr. Munson sees two events have eroded the community. 1) Degen and Associates buying 

properties and turning them into rentals, and 2) the August 20 flood. He fees an apartment building 

would isolate the existing homes and end the neighborhood. Rebuilding Garden Homes to maintain 

the community may be optimistic. He likes the “pocket neighborhood” ideas. 

Mr. Frantz suggested that Mr. Munson was talking about density. 

Mr. Munson added he agrees with Carolyn Benforado’s suggestion to rezone the area to allow for 

smaller, single-family homes or something similar. 

Mr. Frantz indicated the Commission could consider alternatives to typical side yard setbacks, 

floor area regulations, etc. to encourage the size and type of homes. 

Mr. Harrington indicated that the development objectives used qualitative descriptions, based on 

community input, to encourage single-family homes or similar uses. It does not specify what type 

of housing should be built. The development objectives provide guidance to a developer, not 

prescribe what should be built. He discussed some options for “pocket neighborhoods”. 

Mr. Imes asked about the value proposition between rental and ownership. Mr. Harrington used 

the Lodge as an example. If it were condominiums, a unit would be valued at $250-350K. The 

rental units have about 40% overhead expenses reducing the value to $120-125K. If considering a 

TID, a for sale housing development would be more valuable than rental units. 

Mr. Harrington discussed some possible language to prescribe the types, designs, etc. The 

comprehensive plan is aspirational but the Village can prescribe limitations if it so chooses. 

3) Common/Open Space. 

Mr. Harrington discussed common space items, tradeoffs between density and affordability. He 

also discussed strategic buffering between existing neighbors but not isolating them. Consensus of 

the Commission was that common open space would be available to all residents of Garden 

Homes. 

4) Minimize Vehicular Impact. 

Mr. Harrington said the development objectives strive to maintain a connection between Locust 

Drive and University Ave for pedestrians, so the development does not increase vehicle traffic. It 

also suggests locating primary access points and vehicular drives away from existing homes. 

Mr. Imes asked if the Commission should consider Garden Homes as a single unit or split into 

east, west and University Ave sections. Agree to restore community feel with development. 

Mr. Wellensiek suggested possibly rezoning Maple Terrace in one way and Burbank Place in 

another way to accommodate smaller homes. 



 

Page 3 of 3 

Mr. Harrington indicated the comprehensive plan could describe mixed-uses district that allows 

separate zoning areas that could be rezoned without being required to change the comprehensive 

plan again. 

Mr. Wellensiek asked about the process for a proposed comprehensive plan amendment. Mr. Imes 

indicated that Mr. Harrington will, based on tonight’s discussion, develop some draft language for 

the Commission to consider at its September meeting. 

 

Mr. Benforado rejoined the Commission at 9:02 pm. 

 

Review and possible recommendation regarding zoning code changes as it relates to 

accessory uses 

Mr. Benforado explained that, in 2012, the Village updated the zoning code pertaining to accessory 

uses and inadvertently deleted a portion of the Code. He proposed restoring the deleted sections 

and addressing other ambiguous areas of the zoning code. He will suggest to the Board that they 

suspend their normal rules and consider three readings of the proposed ordinance change at one 

meeting to resolve the mistake. 

The Commission discussed including regulations on short-term rentals such as Airbnb and VRBO. 

By consensus, the Commission directed Mr. Frantz to bring an ordinance to the Commission at 

the next meeting that includes at least the restoration of the deleted regulations. 

 

Review and possible recommendation on update to Village comprehensive plan in 2020 

Mr. Benforado explained that Gary Becker declined to help update the full comprehensive plan in 

2020 due to his availability. The Village will need to circulate a request for proposals (RFP) for 

updating the full comprehensive plan. The following firms: Ayers, Urban Assets, MSA, 

Vandewalle will be sent the RFP and it will be posted on the Village website. 

Mr. Benforado and Ms. Hartzell had suggestions to augment the draft RFP language. 

Mr. Wellensiek moved and Mr. Etmanczyk seconded a motion to recommend to the Board that 

the revised RFP be distributed with a due date of October 1 to get approval and budgeting to start 

January 1, 2020. 

Vote: Approved 7-0. 

 

Minutes: July 9, 2019 

No action taken. 

 

Set Next Meeting 

Tuesday, September 10, 2019 at 7:00 pm. 

 

Adjourn 

The meeting was adjourned at 9:37 pm. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

 

David Sykes 

Administrative Services Manager/Deputy Clerk 





Heiden Haus Committee Minutes 
Village of Shorewood Hills 
Thursday, June 6, 2019 

Village Hall—810 Shorewood Boulevard 
 
 
1. Meeting called to order at roughly 1:00 by Tracy Kozoil. 

• Members present: Tracy Koziol, Santhia Brandt, Lucy Richards, Nancy 
Heiden, Sally Corden, John Voegeli, Nancy Holyoke. Anne Readel was also 
present via a phone hookup. Residents present: Jeannie Roberts, Peggy 
Scallon, Mark Redsten, Kathy Acher, Jan Tymorek.  
• Compliance with open meeting law: The meeting was properly posted. 
• Approval of minutes: Previous minutes were approved.   

 
2. Recap of search for architects 

• Tracy and Karl Franz reported to the group on progress in finding an 
architect. At the committee’s previous meeting, members voted to ask the 
service committee to give Karl the OK to begin this search. The committee 
did give the OK, and Karl “reached out” to a number of firms. Several larger 
ones expressed no interest in the project, but two smaller firms—Destree 
Architecture and Design and Jewell Associates—responded positively. Karl 
talked to both extensively on the phone, and both did site visits with him to 
the Heiden Haus. Believing them to be good candidates, Karl asked that Tracy 
and one other member of the committee be present for an initial interview. 
Karl, Tracy, and Nancy Holyoke met with Melissa Destree on May 1, and with 
Greg Jewell and Paul Kardatzke of Jewell on May 14. Afterward, both firms 
sent proposals and responded to additional questions via email. The 
proposals and a chart compiled by Nancy to compare results were forwarded 
to members before the current meeting. Paper copies showing samples of 
Jewell’s projects were circulated at the table.   
 
• Tracy and Nancy relayed their impressions of the two candidates. Tracy 
said that Destree had done both residential and commercial work in the 
Village and had experience with park structures with the City of Madison. She 
believed Destree would be familiar with the scope and scale of the work. She 
liked the level of detail in the Destree proposal. Nancy described Melissa as 
smart, sociable, high-energy, and laidback. Tracy described Jewell as quieter. 
Nancy found the Jewell reps likable, low key, and down to earth. She 
wondered at that time if Destree was more a boutique firm—fancier than the 
project required—and that Jewell would be more nuts-and-bolts and 
cheaper. Jewell also has the ability to design HVAC and structural 
engineering inhouse, where Destree has to hire partners. But when the 
proposals came in, the costs between the two firms seemed to be pretty 
much a wash, though hourly rates for Jewell were actually higher. Jewell had 
less detail in their initial proposal, though they readily filled in the gaps via 
email when asked for clarifications.  



 
3. Discussion on architects. 

• John Voegeli said the cost in both proposals surprised him. He wanted to  
know why they were so high, and under what conditions they might go 
higher or lower. He noted that Jewell’s proposal referred to small, medium, 
and large designs, and wondered how that aligned to the committee’s resolve 
to keep the current footprint of the building and also to the estimate. 
 
• Kathy Acher asked why the renovation needed an architect at all.  
 
• Karl said that if the costs exceed $25,000, then the project is not classed as 
maintenance but a renovation, and it has to be bid out. That process involves 
writing very specific specs detailing everything from the type of windows, 
doors, toilets, and sinks, to the electrical components, the furnace, the hot 
water, and how everything meets code. That requires an architect. (“I don’t 
know how you avoid it.”) He also noted that a project like this requires an 
architect that understands the whole process involved in bidding out a public 
project to contractors. The red tape involved in all this, and the high level of 
detail, is why the costs are high.  
 
• Tracy said she was surprised by the costs in the proposals, too, however 
she believes that the Village is protecting its long-term investment by making 
sure the renovation is done correctly.  

 
• Tracy noted in passing that in the past some people had said that the  
existing bathrooms might be ADA compliant as they are now. Both Destree 
and Jewell said definitively that they are not. Tracy also noted that since the 
previous committee meeting she had learned that the stack for the Heiden 
Haus bathroom is on the east side of the structure—not the west, where the 
bathrooms currently sit. Ie., the plumbing connects to the sewer on the 
Columbia Road side of the building, not on Harvard, as the committee had 
assumed. She said that the committee had voted not to move the bathrooms 
at the previous meeting, or change the footprint of the building. She didn’t 
want to reopen that issue now, but that she thought the committee should 
have the info.  
 
• Nancy Heiden said that the building is not just a skating hut now. It has 
other uses as well, in warm weather months. She said that the committee had 
been challenged with improving the place for both those uses and for the 
future needs of the Village. 
 
• Kathy said that the committee had not been directed to turn the building 
into a multipurpose room and reiterated her skepticism about the need for 
an architect.  
 



• Tracy said that the committee had voted to get an architect, and that issue 
was closed. Nancy Heiden and Lucy Richards said that the HH is already 
being used for other purposes, Land Rec most obviously.  
 
• In terms of cost, Karl said that this would be a phased project. Phase one is 
simply getting to a point where we have an agreed-upon design in tangible 
form. Phase two involves taking that design around and fund-raising. Phase 
three is bidding. Construction follows that.  
 
• John again wondered about how firm the prices were in the proposals. He 
said that even with the chart, it was hard to compare. Nancy Holyoke agreed. 
The chart was a result of her own struggle to align apples to apples. The 
companies use different terminology, particularly in terms of design 
development. She noted that only the first, design part of the proposals were 
solid. The numbers given for the later phases of the project were speculative 
only, as the firms can’t be more specific until they know the scale and detail 
of the structure. 
 
• Anne Readel said that after reviewing the proposals and looking at the two 
firms online, she believed Destree would be the stronger choice, based on 
their understanding of Village issues and experience in small public projects.  
 
• Santhia wondered how Destree and Jewell compare with Vierbrecher, the 
previous architect, in terms of price and in terms of how well they listen and 
take direction. Vierbrecher didn’t seem to hear what the committee wanted, 
and their revisions weren’t real revisions but tweaks. She wondered if we 
couldn’t ask the candidates about that.  
 
• Tracy agreed about the previous experience, which she judged to be a 
failure. She said that she gave Vierbrecher lots of feedback outside of 
committee time, and the message still didn’t get through. She said that 
Vierbrecher was paid $24,000, but those plans included landscape work, and 
so the scope was larger. In response to a question from Kathy, Tracy said that 
the current monies available for the project came from last year’s Bocce 
Bash.  
 
• Mark Redsten asked how the firms would charge for revisions. If their first 
plans are totally off track, so that the next is less a revision than a new 
concept, is there an extra charge for that? John, Nancy Holyoke, Nancy 
Heiden, Sally Corden, and others talked about the tricky nature of 
communication between client and architect. A client wants a responsive 
architect that doesn’t nickel and dime and charge for every tweak; an 
architect can’t promise unlimited designs for a fickle client. In her own home 
project, Sally went through three different architects, feeling none were 
really hearing her. She said that it would be vital to keep the committee’s 
directives very specific and very focused. Tracy agreed. She said that much 



has been decided already. It’s how to open up the building that’s not 
resolved, and how or if to provide more shade. Sally also wondered if we 
shouldn’t call references.  
 
• Ann said that what jumped out to her was that Destree came back with 
examples of projects similar in scope to ours. She believes that shows 
Destree understands the nature of the project. She also believes we’ve got a 
decent focus on it ourselves now.   
 
• Karl reiterated that he’d spent considerable time with people from both 
firms. He gave them the latest agreed-upon to-do list, directed them to all the 
old minutes, and recapped the whole history of the project. He told them how 
difficult a process it has been and where the committee is now, so both are 
aware of what they’re walking into. At the outset, he was a little concerned 
that Destree might not have done enough municipal work to know how to 
handle the bidding, but he discovered that they had, and he is now 
comfortable with both.  
 
• John wondered if Tracy Bailey was still on the committee. When Tracy K 
said no, he asked if we shouldn’t add a member. Tracy K said that’s up to the 
Village board. Karl felt that the committee was larger than average as is.  
 
• At some point, both Tracy and Nancy said that they were leaning toward 
Destree. Tracy thought they really “get” the Village and likes their work. 
Nancy echoed that and added that Destree would also likely have more of a 
stake in the project. Jewell does lots of engineering work, on roads and larger 
buildings. They don’t do residential. Destree has clients in the Village, and a 
reputation to burnish and protect.  
 
• Members were polled individually, and all expressed a preference for 
Destree.  
 
• The group talked about how to get references. Mark said he could help the 
committee figure out whom to talk to in the City of Madison. Karl said he 
could help get names of people in Shorewood who’d used Destree. (He has 
already received messages from people endorsing Destree based on the 
notice of the committee meeting.) The group agreed that Santhia and Sally 
would follow up on those by the 21st. Nancy Heiden expressed a willingness 
to help, too.  
 
• The group also talked about the desirability of asking Destree a few more 
questions about costs and the design process. John suggested that be a 
conversation, not something done in email. Members agreed to submit 
questions they’d like asked to Karl by Monday, June 10th. (One would be: 
What constitutes a revision?) Karl will combine the questions into a 
document and send that to Tracy and Nancy, who will talk then talk to 



Melissa Destree. John suggested that details from any understanding might 
get written into the contract.  
 
• The committee concluded that if the references are positive and the 
conversation is positive, the contract will go to Destree.   

 
4. Adjourned.  

• Tracy adjourned the meeting at 2:02 PM.  
 
 
 
 
 
—Minutes submitted by Nancy Holyoke 



Ad Hoc Heiden Haus Area Committee Minutes—DRAFT 
Village of Shorewood Hills 

Friday, August 2, 2019 
Village Hall—810 Shorewood Boulevard 

1. Meeting called to order at 10:05 AM. 
-Members present: Tracy Koziol, Lucy Richards, Santhia Brandt, Sally Corden, Nancy 
Holyoke, Nancy Heiden, John Voegeli.  
-Residents and staff present: Karl Frantz, David Sykes, Farah Kaiksow, Kathy Acher, 
Mark Redsten, Genevieve Redsten, Jeannie Roberts, Bob Corbett. 
-Invited guest: Melissa Destree, AIA, IIDA, RID, Destree Design Architects 
-Compliance with open meeting law:  The meeting was properly posted. 
-Approval of minutes:  Previous minutes from June were not presented for approval. 

2. Destree Design Architects was chosen by the Committee in June to design the remodel 
of the Heiden Haus.  Melissa Destree introduced herself as the principle architect of her 
firm, 20 years experience.  They have done municipal shelters for past 8 years (e.g. 
Evansville, Madison), residential work, specialize in restoration.   
1-2 commercial projects per year, currently working on 18 retail spaces in Mitchell 
Airport, Milwaukee. 

3.   Review architect’s findings on maintenance and repairs 

Melissa and assistant recently made measurements on site, assessed the       building in 
light of this Committee’s list of goals from the February meeting.  Presentation today 
(see attached PDF of 24 slides) will summarize that list of goals, what she saw, 
opportunities and challenges.  Next meeting will bring 2-3 ideas to consider.  She 
referred to the outline of Destree’s process working with clients emailed to Village in 
May (reviewed by this Committee in June).  The following are summaries of the 
discussion related to each slide during Ms. Destree’s presentation.  Please refer to 
the PDF for slide content. 

Slides 1-2: Recent exterior photos of Heiden Haus. Slide 3: landscape site plan 
provided by Verbicher Associates in past.  Slide 4: New drawings of floor plan and 
outside elevations of 4 sides of building.   

Slide 5: Initial February 2019 Goals–Melissa commented that a fixed structure for 
shade is better and cheaper long term compared with the awning option.  
Unfortunately, no existing overhang to work with. 

Slide 6: Building Accessibility and Building Code—actually not a lot of 
improvements needed to meet minimum accessibility code, but may want to aim for 
higher standard (highest is “universal standard”). For example, in existing toilet rooms, 
if the doors swing out instead of in and sinks moved to side walls, that would 
technically meet minimum accessibility code.  Current measurements of toilet rooms 
are 7’7”x5’2” and 8’x5’2.”  Universal standard goal would be 9x5’4”.   

Slide 7: Generosity of the Community—Has new attractive ways to display the 
information on the 1981 list of donors plaque and Heiden posters (“digital vinyl”).  



Some discussion about the donated Aspen trees, which provide good shade at their 
current size/maturity.  30 feet of clearance from side of building.   

Slide 8: Maintenance & Repair—The building is in sound structural condition, 
including soffits and fascia.  Crank extensions missing from upper windows, so not 
operable.  Can replace with windows that open with remote control.  Interior wood and 
trusses in good shape. 

Slides 9-12: Maintenance & Repair-Exterior—Noted possible old phone line attached 
to southeast end of roof, likely non-functional and should be removed.  Gas and electric 
utilities look good.  Sanitary connection comes in east side of building, though toilet 
rooms currently on west side.  Some degradation of wood edges of decking and lower 
siding at level of deck.  Roof in good shape, except where arbor vitae overhangs east end 
causing growth of vegetation on shingles.  Consider removal and replacement of arbor 
vitae.  If want solar panels on south side of roof, should also remove tall, “scraggly” 
evergreen at corner of Harvard and Columbia.  Question was asked, “How much do we 
need solar for this building?”  Tracy stated the Village is trying to find ways to increase 
sustainability and a village resident has offered to donate the solar system for free. 

Melissa asked about “doorbell”?  David clarified that it turns on the field lights. She 
continued that the plumbing should be replaced and will need all new mechanicals.  
Choice of furnace/heater and whether need hot water heater (park shelters often only 
have cold water source) to be decided.  Would have to pull up slab if want radiant floor 
heat.    

Slides 13-15: Maintenance & Repair-Mechanicals—Heat source is set up near 
ceiling, like a cooling source should be, which is backward.  Opportunity to install a 
more efficient system.  Electric panel is on exterior wall, should be brought inside.  
North toilet room has floor drain, but south toilet room drain is in utility room on other 
side of door—needs own drain for ease of maintenance. Access to storage closets 
difficult.  Could Land Rec use space in Public Works building for storage?  Genevieve 
(Director of Land Rec) stated they spend 75% of their time accessing the closets for 
craft supplies and sports equipment, so need closets on site. 

Slides 16-19: Maintenance & Repair-Interior—Rafters have remnants of past paper 
displays/tape.  Melissa suggested other options for display with hooks, felt wall.  Need 
efficient way to clean toilet rooms, such as ability to hose down interior.  Can use 
fiberglass reinforced panels (FRP), Corian, large tiles, or concrete masonry units for 
walls, like a shower room. 

Slide 20: Maintenance & Repair-Land Rec Closet—more discussion of Land Rec’s use 
of existing closet space.  Per Genevieve, one is for crafts and one for sports, large table 
umbrellas hang over head near ceiling.  Narrow entries and hard to maneuver in space.  
Need shelving in sports closet, now working out of bins with poor visibility.  Currently 
use outside faucet for sprinkler and utility sink inside to fill water balloons.  Segued into 
discussion of trough sink for Land Rec cleanup and  other social gatherings where food 
is served.  Lucy described this area would ideally function as a mini-kitchen, with 
cabinets and counter space to hold a coffee pot or hot pot, more electrical outlets in the 



area.  Melissa stated that technically still need to maintain a janitor sink, as well. 
Residents mentioned the concern that the Heiden Haus is not the Community Center 
and, as discussed in this committee before, we should guard against duplicating 
functions of a Community Center in this project.   

Slides 21-22: Other Recommendations & Questions—List described as “low hanging 
fruit.”  New bike racks? Current racks are borrowed from school for summer.  Santhia 
stated her daughter’s girl scout troop is working on a project to provide bike racks for 
the Heiden Haus.  Can exterior wooden trash and recycling receptacles be removed, 
since have mobile bins? Different system for interior trash and recycling?  Melissa has 
ideas for affordable, fun wall-friendly options for displaying Land Rec projects and 
public displays or decorations.  Need for improved ventilation with remotely controlled 
windows (~$3000).  Maybe a central vacuum for ease of maintenance, units, actually 
quite small and easy to use. (~$1100).  Rubber flooring? How many benches needed 
inside, as many as are currently there? 

Envisions a “split” HVAC system (ductless heat pump mounted on wall) would work 
well for needs of this space.  Do we want to keep current cedar siding?  Some expressed 
desire to keep current appearance of Heiden Haus through the restoration project (also 
expressed by residents in past public input meetings), while it was also stated that 
there are village residents who would be okay with a different appearance.  General 
consensus in meeting was to keep the cedar. 

Glass garage doors on north side would not work, since no room for overhead track 
system, but sliding transparent wall panels are possible and reasonably energy efficient. 
Nice for ease of watching kids skate from inside building.  Will explore way to add new 
overhang/small roof attached to west side of building for added shade and protection 
from elements/meeting place when Heiden Haus is locked.   

Led to discussion of how/when the building and toilet rooms are locked.  Karl stated 
that the Village has already invested in a remote wi-fi lock system for Four Corners and 
that could easily be available for Heiden Haus (can lock/unlock buildings from Village 
Hall).  One toilet room is usually locked and other is unlocked.  Have had repeated 
problems with people using the toilet room for drug use when unlocked. 

Slides 23-24: Preliminary Proposed Project Schedule and Deliverables—next 
meeting to be scheduled around August 16 or week after.  Neighborhood meeting best 
delayed to second week of September after school starts. 

Meeting adjourned 11:30 AM. 

Respectfully submitted August 14, 2019, 

Sally Corden 

Attachment: Heiden Haus 080219 Presentation PDF 




